
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Standards Committee 

on Tuesday, 18 September 2018, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Matt Brereton 

Sheila Capstick 

Chris Hogg 

John Holmes 

Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 

Eric Morrell 

Matt Severn (Chairman)  

 

Parish Members 
 

David Peters 

Peter Smillie   

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Friday, 7 September 2018 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 10 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 17 April 2018. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  TERMS OF REFERENCE  11 - 12 

 To note the Terms of Reference for the Standards Committee, as attached.  

6  LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW 2017/18  13 - 24 

 To receive the Annual Report of the Local Ombudsman for 2017/18 and the 
Summary of Complaints received since April 2018. 

 

7  CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  25 - 30 

 To consider the report of the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) with regards to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements 
from April 2018. 

 

8  REGISTER OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY AND OTHER INTERESTS  31 - 34 

 To review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other interests for District 
Council Members and Co-optees for the period to September 2018. 

 

9  PARISH REGISTERS  35 - 38 

 To review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other interests for Parish 
Councillors for the period to September 2017 to September 2018. 

 



10  EMPLOYEE REGISTER OF INTERESTS AND GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  39 - 42 

 To review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality for employees for the 
period September 2017 to September 2018. 

 

11  STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  43 - 44 

 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



5 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Georgian 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Tuesday, 17 April 2018, at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 
Chris Hogg (Chairman) 

Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Mark Wilson 
 

  
 

  
 

Parish Members 
 

David Peters 
 

  
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillor Eric Morrell, and Parish Member 
Peter Smillie. 
 

Officers 
 

Jason Habbershon Committee Services/Scrutiny Officer 

Simon McVey Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

 

S/12 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of 
the meeting held on 19 September 2017. 
 

S/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

S/14 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

S/15 REPORT ON COMPLIMENTS, CUSTOMER FEEDBACK AND COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 
DURING 2017/18  
 
The Assistant Director Performance and Innovation presented an update on the 
compliments, customer feedback and complaints received during 2017/18.  
 
During 2017/18 there had been a large increase in the number of compliments; 72 
compared to 54 received during the previous year. 
 
Previous reports had shown that the number of complaints received tended to be 
consistent, and averaged approximately two per week. This trend had continued during 
2017/18 with a slight reduction in the overall number of complaints. Both the average time 
taken to respond to complaints and the number of complaints answered within the 10 

Page 5

Item No.2



6 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

working day target had also improved since the previous year. The Assistant Director 
Performance and Innovation confirmed that no trend had been identified with regard to the 
nature of complaints received. 
 
A discussion was held on the definition of a complaint and a compliment as well as the 
ways in which these were received, with particular regard to customer contact through 
social media platforms. The Assistant Director Performance and Innovation explained that 
whether a communication was classified as a complaint would depend upon the situation. 
 
The Chairman asked whether the targets for responding to complaints received could be 
tighter given that the Council regularly exceeded them. The Assistant Director Performance 
and Innovation explained that the majority of complaints received were dealt with within 
one working day, but that the target needed to reflect the likely average of all cases, 
including those which were more complex and which required a full investigation. 
 
The Committee expressed its thanks to staff and particularly welcomed the reduction in 
complaints received by Street Scene relating to missed bin collections. 
 
The Assistant Director Performance and Innovation reported that the Annual Review Letter 
from the Local Government Ombudsman was expected in July 2018. There had been no 
public interest reports received. Since September 2017 one complaint had been upheld 
and recorded as maladministration and injustice at pre-report stage. The Council was 
required to review an application and its procedures for future applications. This application 
had been reviewed and the procedures were being reviewed within an agreed timeframe. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the report be received; and 
 
(2) the recent decisions of the Local Government Ombudsman be noted. 
 

S/16 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS  
 
The Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented a report regarding 
complaints received under the Council’s Standards Arrangements from September 2017. 
 
One complaint regarding a parish/district councillor had been forwarded for investigation by 
the Monitoring Officer. She also explained that the local constabulary were not to pursuing 
any further the case of an alleged failure to declare an interest which had been passed on 
to them earlier in the municipal year. 
 
The Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) reported that a query regarding a 
further parish matter had recently been raised but that no formal complaint had been made 
at the time of reporting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

S/17 REVIEW OF DISPENSATIONS RE PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The findings of the review of dispensations relating to public participation was presented by 
the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer). 
 
In April 2016, the Standards Committee had considered a dispensation for Members and 
Co-opted Members to enable them to make representations under the General Public 

Page 6



7 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

Participation Scheme in circumstances where the Member had a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in relation to that agenda item. The same dispensation had been approved to allow 
Members and Co-opted Members to utilise the Public Participation Scheme applicable to 
Planning Committee.  
 
Since the dispensations had been introduced there was evidence of them having been 
used at Planning Committee which had enabled Members to put forward representations 
where they would not have been able to do so without dispensation. If the Standards 
Committee felt it appropriate to continue the dispensations, it was suggested that they be 
extended for a further period of four years, the maximum period which a dispensation may 
take effect. 
 
Members raised the importance of the need for clear guidance for those using 
dispensations, particularly for those who were not members of the Planning Committee. 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) confirmed that she would follow 
this up. She also reiterated that the dispensation was only required where a Member had a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or where there was the possibility of bias or 
predetermination, and not simply by acting in the role of ward member. 
 
The potential impact of the introduction of three Member wards on public participation 
regarding ward matters was discussed and whether this would reduce the effectiveness of 
the dispensation. The Committee felt that the boundary changes would not negate the 
need for the dispensation and that there was merit in continuing its application for a further 
four years. 
 
RESOLVED – That the continuation of the existing dispensations for a period of four years 
be approved as detailed within the report. 
 

S/18 GUIDANCE ON GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 
The revised Guidance for Members on Gifts and Hospitality was presented by the Director 
of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer). The guidance sought to help Members and 
Co-opted Members to avoid situations where their integrity may be questioned as a result 
of the offer or receipt of gifts and hospitality. The guidance had last been reviewed in 
September 2015. 
 
The Member Development Steering Group had reviewed the document in September 2017 
and requested that the guidance included reference to the Officer / Member Protocol and 
how this also governed the relationship and engagements between Members and Officers. 
 
An additional amendment had been proposed following the despatch of the agenda to 
make clear within paragraph 3.2 of the guidance that registration of gifts and hospitality 
was only required where the value was at least £50. 
 
It was highlighted that the title of the guidance referred to Members but not Co-opted 
Members. The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) undertook to amend 
the title as part of the document’s finalisation. 
 
A discussion was held on the appropriateness of the question asked at the end of 
paragraph 11.2 of the guidance. It was agreed that the word “received” should be changed 
to “offered”, to read “Would I have been offered this gift or hospitality even if I were not the 
Leader/Portfolio Holder?” 
 

Page 7



8 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

Members requested that, as part of the next review of the guidance, the views and 
experience of the Leader and Cabinet Members be sought and fed back to the Committee. 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) confirmed that the views of the 
Executive would be included within the next review scheduled for 2019/20. 
 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the amendments raised above, the revised Guidance for 
Members and Co-opted Members on Gifts and Hospitality, as attached at Appendix 1 to the 
report, be approved. 
 

S/19 REVIEW OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT ETHICAL STANDARDS: STAKEHOLDER 
CONSULTATION  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) explained that the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life was undertaking a Review of Local Government Ethical Standards. 
As part of that review, the Council had been invited to respond to a stakeholder 
consultation paper, and a draft response had been produced based upon that feedback.  
 
A discussion was held on the sanctions currently available to councils and how these had 
changed following the introduction of the Localism Act 2011. The majority of Members felt 
that greater power to sanction those failing to follow the Code of Conduct was needed, 
however, were of the opinion that the former Standards Board for England (SBE) had been 
dismantled for the right reasons. Despite this, a concern was raised that increasing the 
power to sanction could potentially be misused and that this could lead to the 
disenfranchisement of residents. Overall it was agreed that the response to the Committee 
on Standards in Public Life indicate a preference for the reinstatement of the pre-Localism 
Act 2011 sanctions, with a recognition that these powers would be used in exceptional 
circumstances only. 
 
It was suggested that the response to the “Declaring interests and conflicts of interest” 
section should include reference to the active dispensations approved by the Standards 
Committee. 
 
In formulating a response to the “Improving standards” section of the consultation paper, 
Members felt that consideration should be given to the creation of an independent body, 
more agile than the previous SBE, which could reduce inconsistencies and provide greater 
guidance. This independent board could review cases but would not be a reinvention of the 
SBE. 
 
Members felt that the Cumbria Monitoring Officers group was an example of great 
partnership working which had ensured consistency across the vast majority of authorities 
within the county. 
 
It was suggested that the improvements made to the website through Customer Connect 
and the introduction of a Members SharePoint page would further improve the training and 
awareness of standards issues amongst councillors.  
 
The Committee felt that the steps available to Local Government in improving ethical 
standards was dependent largely upon Government policies. The need for better 
management of public expectation of standards regimes was also highlighted as an 
important consideration for the review. 
 
Members discussed the various forms of intimidation which may be experienced by elected 
Members, particular through increasing use of social media. Concern was also expressed 
regarding the potential for those recording meetings to subsequently edit the footage 

Page 8



9 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

unfairly, and Members felt that prior notification of filming should be a requirement. Overall 
the Committee felt that the current rule of law was sufficient in dealing with intimidation of 
Councillors, but that it was nevertheless an increasing issue which needed to be addressed 
and had potentially meant that fewer people were willing to stand for office. Additional 
guidance and support would be welcomed to help Members to better deal with intimidation. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) undertook to amend the draft 
response based upon the comments raised and agreed to circulate this to the Committee 
prior to submission. Members felt it appropriate to delegate authority to the Director of 
Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) to finalise the document, in consultation with the 
Chairman, and to submit the final response to the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
prior to the 18 May 2018 deadline. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Review of Local Government Ethical Standards by the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life be noted; 
 
(2) subject to the amendments and additions raised, the draft responses to the 
consultation paper be approved; and 
 
(3) the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) be authorised, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Standards Committee, to finalise the response prior 
to submission to the Committee on Standards in Public Life. 
 

S/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18  
 
The draft Annual Report 2017/18 was presented by the Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) and detailed the work of the Committee and the operation of the 
Council’s Standards Arrangements over the past 12 months. 
 
It was considered appropriate for the Committee to review the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements on a regular basis. This had last been done in 2017 and it had been 
proposed that the next review would take place in 2018/19. The Annual Report would be 
amended, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, prior to its submission to 
Council to reflect decisions arising from this meeting. 
 
Members wished to record their particular thanks to the Director of Policy and Resources 
(Monitoring Officer) for the huge amount of work she put in to supporting the Standards 
Committee and her work in ensuring standards were upheld across the District. Parish 
Member Councillor David Peters added that South Lakeland District Council was viewed in 
high regard by Members of the Cumbria Association of Local Councils 
 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the finalisation of the document to reflect the decisions 
arising from this meeting, the draft Annual Report 2018/19 be approved for referral to full 
Council. 
 

S/21 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) presented the Standards 
Committee’s Work Programme for 2018/19. 
 
The Committee felt that there would be benefit in arranging a mock hearing for Standards 
Committee Members, particularly given the length of time that had passed since the last 

Page 9



10 
17.04.2018 Standards Committee 
 

 

hearing had taken place. The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
suggested that there was the potential to arrange a Cumbria-wide training session for 
Standards Committee Members and that a mock hearing could be included as part of that. 
 
It was highlighted that the Work Programme contained a duplicate entry regarding training 
and that the Review of Standards Arrangement scheduled for April 2018 was not included. 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) undertook to amend the Work 
Programme following the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Standards Committee’s Work Programme for 2018/19 be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.35 p.m. 

Page 10



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION 

Part 3 – Responsibility for Functions 

2.7 STANDARDS COMMITTEE (SEVEN DISTRICT MEMBERS - SEE ARTICLE 9 OF THE 
CONSTITUTION) 

Functions Delegation of Functions 

The promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct for 
elected and co-opted members of the Council 

No onward delegation. 

To advise the council on the adoption or revision of its Code of 
Conduct and additional roles and functions as detailed in Article 9.03 

No onward delegation. 

To monitor and advise the council about the operation of the Code of 
Conduct in the light of best practice, changes in the law, relevant 
guidance. 

No onward delegation. 

Assistance to members and co-opted members of the authority No onward delegation. 

To ensure that all members of the Council have access to training in 
all aspects of the member Code of Conduct, that this training is 
actively promoted, and that members are aware of the standards 
expected from local councillors under the Code 

No onward delegation. 

In consultation with the Independent Person, to grant dispensations 
up to a maximum of 4 years in the following circumstances –  

1. That he/she considers that without the dispensation the number of 
persons prohibited from participating in any particular matter would be 
so great a proportion of the body transacting the business as to 
impede the transaction of the business. 

2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different 
political groups on the body transacting any particular business would 
be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the 
business. 

3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Cabinet would be 
able to participate on this matter. 

4.That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests 
of persons living in the authority’s area 

5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant 
a dispensation. 

The power to grant 
dispensations with regards to 
1, 2 and 3 has been 
delegated to the Monitoring 
Officer, in consultation with 
the Independent Person, with 
an appeal to the Standards 
Committee 

Other functions 

Functions relating to standards of conduct of members under any 
relevant provision of, or regulations made under the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

The Monitoring Officer has 
delegated functions as set 
out in the Council’s 
Standards Arrangements. A 
Sub-Committee/Hearing 
Panel of the Standards 
Committee of 3 members 
will, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, deal 
with functions in relation to 
hearings relating to 
Standards of conduct of 
Members and co-opted 
members 

Power to recommend payments or the provision of other benefits in 
cases of maladministration, etc. 

No onward delegation. 

Page 11

Item No.5



Functions Delegation of Functions 

Power to shortlist and interview candidates and make 
recommendations to Council regarding appointment of Independent 
Persons. 

An ad hoc sub-committee of 
three Members. 

 

A TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE/HEARING PANEL  

(1) In the event that a hearing is required in accordance with the Council’s Standards 
Arrangements, a Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel shall be convened to hear and determine 
any allegations that a member or co-opted member of the Council or a Town/Parish Council has 
failed, or may have failed, to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

(2) Composition. The Hearing Panel shall comprise three members of the Standards Committee.  

(3) Quorum. The quorum for a meeting shall be three members  

(4) Frequency of Meetings. The Standards Sub-Committee/Hearing Panel shall meet as and 
when required to hear and determine any allegation(s) against an elected member or co-opted 
member of the Council. 

 

Page 12



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Tuesday, 18 September 2018 

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 
2017/18 and complaints update 

 

Portfolio:  Cllr Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and Housing, People and 
Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable  

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 That the Standards Committee receive the annual report of the Local Government 
Ombudsman for 2017/18 and the summary of complaints received since April 2018. 

1.2 Feedback is important to help us better understand our customers’ needs and 
concerns and can help identify possible avenues of service improvement. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the report be received  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Members will find attached to this report a copy of the Ombudsman’s Annual Review 
for 2017/18 (Appendix 1). The report appears on the Local Government Ombudsman 
website and is available on the Council’s website. 

3.2 During the reporting period the Local Government Ombudsman made a decision in 7 
cases (compared to 10 in both 2016/17 and 2015/16, and of those investigated 1 was 
upheld (compared to 2 in 2016/17). The one that was upheld was reported to 
Standards Committee in April 2018. There has been a positive downward trend in 
Ombudsman complaints. 

3.3 The Council continues to work hard to resolve any complaints that do arise before 
any referral to the Ombudsman.  A summary of the decisions by service area is also 
provided within the Appendix.   

3.4 At the meeting on 19 September 2017 Members asked for a summary version of the 
compliments, customer feedback and complaints be included as part of the Local 
Ombudsman Annual Review report at the September meeting, with the full report to 
the April meeting (S/4). 

3.5 At the date of this report going to print this information is in the process of being 
collated and the committee will be updated at the meeting.  

Page 13

Item No.6



3.6 Members are asked to note the report. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 None. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The report is to note. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Links to the Council’s priorities in relation to customer satisfaction. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable. 

Human Resources 

7.2 Not applicable. 

Legal 

7.3 No issues to raise.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No not applicable. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   - not applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reputational as a result of 
adverse complaints 

Reputation of council is 
diminished 

Regular review of 
complaints policy and 
handling of complaints 

Appendices attached to this report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Annual Review letter of the LGO 

 

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

None 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 18.7.18 

Section 151 Officer 2.8.18 

Monitoring Officer author 

SMT 2.8.18 

Page 14



Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 18.7.18  

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 18.9.18 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



18 July 2018

By email

Laurence Conway
Chief Executive
South Lakeland District Council

Dear Laurence Conway,

Annual Review letter 2018

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about your authority for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries
received about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this
information will prove helpful in assessing your authority’s performance in handling
complaints.

Complaint statistics
In providing these statistics, I would stress that the volume of complaints does not, in itself,
indicate the quality of the council’s performance. High volumes of complaints can be a sign
of an open, learning organisation, as well as sometimes being an early warning of wider
problems. Low complaint volumes can be a worrying sign that an organisation is not alive to
user feedback, rather than always being an indicator that all is well. So, I would encourage
you to use these figures as the start of a conversation, rather than an absolute measure of
corporate health. One of the most significant statistics attached is the number of upheld
complaints. This shows how frequently we find fault with the council when we investigate.
Equally importantly, we also give a figure for the number of cases where we decided your
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. Both figures
provide important insights.

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold, and may not
necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include
enquiries from people we signpost back to the authority, some of whom may never contact
you.

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our
website, alongside an annual review of local government complaints. The aim of this is to be
transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of local services.

Appendix 1

Page 17



Future development of annual review letters
Last year, we highlighted our plans to move away from a simplistic focus on complaint
volumes and instead turn focus onto the lessons that can be learned and the wider
improvements we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the
many. We have produced a new corporate strategy for 2018-21 which commits us to more
comprehensibly publish information about the outcomes of our investigations and the
occasions our recommendations result in improvements to local services.

We will be providing this broader range of data the first time in next year’s letters, as well as
creating an interactive map of local authority performance on our website. We believe this
will lead to improved transparency of our work, as well as providing increased recognition to
the improvements councils have agreed to make following our interventions. We will
therefore be seeking views from councils on the future format of our annual letters early next
year.

Supporting local scrutiny
One of the purposes of our annual letters to councils is to help ensure learning from
complaints informs scrutiny at the local level. Sharing the learning from our investigations
and supporting the democratic scrutiny of public services continues to be one of our key
priorities. We have created a dedicated section of our website which contains a host of
information to help scrutiny committees and councillors to hold their authority to account –
complaints data, decision statements, public interest reports, focus reports and scrutiny
questions. This can be found at www.lgo.org.uk/scrutiny. I would be grateful if you could
encourage your elected members and scrutiny committees to make use of these resources.

Learning from complaints to improve services
We share the issues we see in our investigations to help councils learn from the issues
others have experienced and avoid making the same mistakes. We do this through the
reports and other resources we publish. Over the last year, we have seen examples of
councils adopting a positive attitude towards complaints and working constructively with us
to remedy injustices and take on board the learning from our cases. In one great example, a
county council has seized the opportunity to entirely redesign how its occupational therapists
work with all of it districts, to improve partnership working and increase transparency for the
public. This originated from a single complaint. This is the sort of culture we all benefit from –
one that takes the learning from complaints and uses it to improve services.

Complaint handling training
We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities
and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2017-18 we
delivered 58 courses, training more than 800 people. We also set up a network of council
link officers to promote and share best practice in complaint handling, and hosted a series of
seminars for that group. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training.

Yours sincerely,

Michael King

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 18



Local Authority Report: South Lakeland District Council
For the Period Ending: 31/03/2018

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website:
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics

Complaints and enquiries received

Adult Care
Services

Benefits and
Tax

Corporate
and Other
Services

Education
and

Children’s
Services

Environment
Services

Highways
and

Transport
Housing

Planning and
Development

Other Total

0 0 1 0 2 1 0 3 0 7

Decisions made Detailed Investigations

Incomplete or
Invalid

Advice Given

Referred
back for

Local
Resolution

Closed After
Initial

Enquiries
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate Total

0 0 2 4 2 1 33% 9

Notes Complaints Remedied

Our uphold rate is calculated in relation to the total number of detailed investigations.

The number of remedied complaints may not equal the number of upheld complaints.
This is because, while we may uphold a complaint because we find fault, we may not
always find grounds to say that fault caused injustice that ought to be remedied.

by LGO
Satisfactorily by

Authority before LGO
Involvement

1 0

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 20



Reference Authority Category Received

17000533 South Lakeland District Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 11/04/17

17000552 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 11/04/17

17009111 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 05/09/17

17013031 South Lakeland District Council Planning & Development 10/11/17

17014457 South Lakeland District Council Environmental Services & Public Protection & Regulation 06/12/17

17014597 South Lakeland District Council Corporate & Other Services 21/02/18

17017042 South Lakeland District Council Highways & Transport 31/01/18

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 22



Reference Authority Category Decided Decision Remedy

16018820 SLDC Housing 10/11/17 Not Upheld Null

16019143 SLDC Planning & Development 03/05/17 Closed after initial enquiries Null

17000533 SLDC

Environmental Services & Public 

Protection & Regulation 21/11/17 Upheld

New appeal/review or reconsidered 

decision,Procedure or policy 

change/review

17000552 SLDC Planning & Development 08/05/17 Closed after initial enquiries Null

17009111 SLDC Planning & Development 26/09/17 Referred back for local resolution Null

17013031 SLDC Planning & Development 02/03/18 Not Upheld Null

17014457 SLDC

Environmental Services & Public 

Protection & Regulation 08/12/17 Referred back for local resolution Null

17014597 SLDC Corporate & Other Services 20/03/18 Closed after initial enquiries Null

17017042 SLDC Highways & Transport 01/03/18 Closed after initial enquiries Null

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Tuesday, 18 September 2018 

Code of Conduct Complaints 

Portfolio:   Cllr Matt Severn, Chairman of Standards Committee 

Report from:  Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 That the Standards Committee notes the report of the Monitoring Officer with regards 
to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements from April 2018. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members are asked to note the report.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews any 
complaints received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of the 
Member’s Code of Conduct, and after consultation with the Independent Person, 
takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. 

3.2 Members were last updated in April 2018. At the date of writing this report there have 
been three complaints considered since April, and one awaiting further information. 
Two other complaints were closed. Appendix 1 shows the nature of the enquiry and 
how they have been resolved. The appendix also includes additional information on 
the update provided to the April meeting.  

3.3 Members are asked to note the report and provide any feedback on the new 
reporting format. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Not applicable. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The report is to note 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Good governance links to the Council’s achievement of its Council Plan priorities and 
objectives.  

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no additional financial resource implications. 

Page 25

Item No.7



Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identified 

Legal 

7.3 The Council is required to ensure that it accords with the requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011. 

7.4 The Council has adopted Standards Arrangements within which any complaints 
against members are considered. There are no issues to raise in this report. 

 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No not applicable. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   - not applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the Council fails to comply 
with the requirements of the 
Localism Act 2011 

 

Challenge to the Council’s 
governance arrangements. 

Ensure appropriate 
arrangements are in place 
to ensure compliance with 
the legislation.  

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Complaints received 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 15.8.18 

Section 151 Officer N/A 

Monitoring Officer author 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 15.8.18 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 18.9.18 

Page 26



Circulated to Date sent 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Complaint from 
Councillor/Officer/
Member of the 
Public? 

date complaint 
received 

Nature of 
complaint

complaint against file closed Independent 
Person Consulted

Local/inform
al 
Resolution

Outcome Considered at 
standards sub

Complaint 
upheld

Member of the 
Public

failure to declare 
DPIs at PC 
Meeting

Parish Councillor 30.7.18 Y N/A Referred for investigation by the local 
constabulary.  The finding was that in 
respect of one of the allegations that 
the councillor had acted outside of 
the remit of s.31 Localism Act 2011 by 
being party to the discussions and 
that in hindsight he should not have 
participated, but not considered to be 
in the public interest to pursue the 
matter further. The Councillor had 
not obtained any obvious advantage 
by being at the meeting.  Subsequent 
to this case, the Monitoring Officer 
has provided training on the code and 
declaration of interests to the Parish 
Council. 

N/A N/A

Parish Councillor 24/03/18 standards of 
behaviour, failure 
to treat others 
with respect and 
bringing office 
into disrepute

Parish Councillor 17.8.18 Y Y Referred for local investigation, 
breach in part found with regard to 
failure to treat others with respect, 
resolved no merit in proceeding to 
hearing, complainant satisfied with 
findings. 

N/A In Part

Member of the 
Public

16/04/18 behaviour of 
Parish Council

26/04/18 N N/A information provided, no further 
communication received

N/A N/A

Member of the 
Public

15/05/18 failure to declare 
other registrable 
interest on 
register form

Parish Councillor 15/06/18 Y N/A Letter written asking to review 
interests, but subsequent resignation 
of Parish councillor

N/A N/A

Parish Councillor 17/07/18 declared DPI but 
failed to leave 
room

Parish/Town 
Councillors

19/07/18 Y Y letters advising breach of standing 
orders rather than code of conduct, 
advice to TC to reinforce standing 
orders

N N/A

Appendix 1

P
age 29



Member of the 
Public

27/07/18 Standards of 
conduct

District/County 
Councillor

complaint sent to both CCC and SLDC, 
CCC MO undertaking initial enquiries 

P
age 30



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Tuesday, 18 September 2018 

Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other  
Registrable Interests 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Matt Severn, Chairman of Standards Committee 

Report from:  Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

That the Standards Committee review the register of disclosable pecuniary and other 
interests for District Council Members and co-optees for the period to September 2018. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the review of the Member register 
of interests  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 members are required to disclose those disclosable 
pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other interests which the 
Council has decided should be registered in the Interests form. 

3.2 Council resolved on 19 June 2012 to adopt the other registrable interests as detailed 
in the register of interests form, and the Monitoring Officer is required to maintain the 
register and ensure that it is available for inspection, as required by the Act, which 
also includes being available on the Council’s website.  When looking at Councillor’s 
detail on the website there are links to the register of interests forms. 

3.3 In May 2018 the Council had an all-out election to implement the revised changes to 
the Ward Boundaries.  Consequently, all 51 Members elected at the elections on 3 
May 2018 were asked to either complete a new form or (if re-elected) confirm that 
there have been no changes to their register of interests. Code of Conduct training 
has also been provided which was offered to all members and parish councillors. 

3.4 All 51 Register forms have been received or updated and are available for inspection.  
The Registers will be available at the meeting.  Members are requested to note the 
annual review of the registers. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 All members were consulted in ensuring that their register of interests were 
completed or up to date. 

Page 31

Item No.8



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review is part of the Committee’s work 
programme. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable. 

Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identified 

Legal 

7.3 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the code of conduct and 
declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as appropriate.  Failure to comply with 
the legislation with regard to disclose and participation at meetings on disclosable 
pecuniary interests is a criminal offence. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No not applicable. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   - not applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not maintained or 
incomplete 

Members could be in 
breach of the 
code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

Members fail to make 
appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 
failure to declare or 
participating in 
proceedings where they 
have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 
declarations are made and 
registers up to date and 
training provided 

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 26.7.18 

Section 151 Officer 26.7.18 

Monitoring Officer author 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Page 32



Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 14.8.18 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 18.9.18 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Tuesday, 18 September 2018 

Parish Registers 

 

Portfolio:   Cllr Matt Severn, Chairman of Standards Committee 

Report from:  Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 That the Standards Committee consider the review of the Parish register of 
disclosable pecuniary and other interests for Parish Councillors for the period 
September 2017 to September 2018. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the review of the Parish register of 
interests  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Localism Act 2011 Parish/Town Councillors are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests as specified in regulations and any other interests 
which their local council has decided should also be registered in the Interests form. 

3.2 Council at its meeting on 19 June 2012 encouraged Parish/Town Councils to adopt 
the District code, and the majority of Parishes/Towns within the District have done 
this and also adopted the same “other registrable interests”.  

3.3 As with the District Council the Monitoring Officer is required to maintain the register 
and ensure that it is available for inspection, as required by the Act, which also 
includes being available on the Council’s website.  Parish/Town Councils must also 
ensure that the interests appear on their Parish/Town Council website if they have 
one. 

3.4 In May 2018 there were five Parish elections, Dent, Garsdale, Kendal Town Council, 
Natland and Sedbergh, and a by-election for a vacancy on Ulverston Town Council. 
The new Parish/Town Council members have been requested to complete a register 
form, and all Parish Councils have been reminded to ensure that their members’ 
registers are up to date. The Monitoring Officer has received a register form from all 
newly elected Parish Councillors. Any further update will be provided at the meeting. 

3.5 Members are requested to note the review of the parish registers. 

Page 35

Item No.9



4.0 Consultation 

4.1 All parishes have been asked to ensure that their Parish/Town Council register of 
interests are up to date. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options.  The annual review is part of the Committee’s work 
programme. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable. 

Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identified 

Legal 

7.3 Members are required to ensure that they comply with the code of conduct and 
declare their disclosable pecuniary interests as appropriate.  Failure to comply with 
the legislation with regard to disclose and participation at meetings on disclosable 
pecuniary interests is a criminal offence. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No not applicable. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No   - not applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not maintained or 
incomplete 

Members could be in 
breach of the 
code/legislation 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

Members fail to make 
appropriate declarations 

Risk of prosecution for 
failure to declare or 
participating in 
proceedings where they 
have a DPI 

Ensure appropriate 
declarations are made and 
registers up to date and 
training provided 

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 26.7.18 

Section 151 Officer N/A 

Monitoring Officer author 

Page 36



Signed off by Date sent 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 14.8.18 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 18.9.18 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



South Lakeland District Council 

Standards Committee 

Tuesday, 18 September 2018 

Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and 
Hospitality 

 

Portfolio:   Deputy Leader of the Council 

Report from:  Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Wards:   

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report is presented to review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality for 
employees for the period September 2017 to September 2018. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee notes the report  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Under the Code of Conduct for South Lakeland District Council Employees, Officers 
are required to give declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality as detailed 
therein. A copy of the Code of Conduct can be found in the Council’s constitution 
(Page 200). 

3.2 There is a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that are declined should 
also be included in any declarations. 

3.3 The Standards Committee has an overview of the Employee Register and is required 
to review it annually.  It was last reviewed in September 2017. 

3.4 The code requires employees to notify the Monitoring Officer of all gifts and 
hospitality which they have received where the value if £25 or where any gift or 
hospitality in connection with their duties is declined. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Directorates have been asked to confirm that the register of interests, etc. is up to 
date.  In the last twelve months, no significant girts or hospitality has been received, 
and the Monitoring Officer has requested an update of any formal declarations.  An 
update will be provide to the meeting.  

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options. The annual review is part of the Committee’s work 
programme. 

Page 39

Item No.10



6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Not applicable 

Human Resources 

7.2 No issues identifed 

Legal 

7.3 Officers are required under the code of conduct to declare appropriate interests  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No – not applicable 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix *)  No 
– not applicable 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Registers not maintained or 
incomplete 

Officers could be in breach 
of code of conduct 

Regular monitoring of 
code and sufficient 
awareness and training 

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

(delete if no appendices attached) 

Background Documents Available 

None 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer N/A 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 18.9.19 

Page 40



Circulated to Date sent 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Standards Committee Work Programme - Updated April 2018 

Topic 

 

May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 

May-

19 

Milestones/  

Targets/Comments 

Standards Committee Training for new Members of Standards 

Committee and refresher training offered to existing members 

    pending         Scheduled for 18 September 2018 

Newly Elected District Councillors Induction  

Training 

all 18 

new 

Members 

attended 

                   9,  11 and 16 May 2018 

Review of Website Details              Ongoing during the year 

Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be an Effective 

Member for District Councillors  

13 

attended 

            11 and 17 May 2018 and 11 and 17  September 2018 refresher - 

Offered to existing and newly elected Councillors   and Parish 

members one(morning and one evening session offered in May 

and September) 

Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be an Effective 

Member for District Councillors 

    pending         11 and 17 May 2018 and 11 and 17  September 2018 refresher - 

Offered to existing and newly elected Councillors   and Parish 

members one(morning and one evening session offered in May 

and September) 

Inspect Registers of Interests for District and Parish Councillors              September 2018 

Review Register of Interests & Gifts & Hospitality for Employees              September 2018 

Consider and adjudicate Dispensation  

Requests 

  
 

          As required by date of next meeting 

Conduct yearly review of complaints, comments and 

compliments procedure  

                     April 2019 

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the LGO              September 2018 

Review of Members/Officer  Protocols              Employee code reviewed in June 2013. Planning Protocol 

considered March 2016. Any additional refresh will be considered 

during the Constitutional review 

Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for Members            
 

 Last reviewed 19 September 2017 

Publicise Role and Work of Standards Committee, and the 

Effectiveness of Standards Committee through the Annual 

Report to full Council 

             Ongoing 

Reports from the Monitoring Officer on  

Investigations 

             As required – updates received at Committee 

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council              April 2019 

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards Committee with 

Parish and Town Councils 

  

 

          Parish Co-optees on Committee 

Review of Dispensations   
 

          Existing dispensations approved for further 4 years in April 2018  

  

Standards Committee Work Programme - April 2018 - May 2019 
 

P
age 43

Item
 N

o.11



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 44


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Terms of Reference
	6 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2017/18
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2017/18  - Appendix 1
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2017/18  - Appendix 1
	Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2017/18  - Appendix 1

	7 Code of Conduct Complaints
	Code of Conduct Complaints  - Appendix 1
	Sheet1


	8 Register of Disclosable Pecuniary and Other Interests
	9 Parish Registers
	10 Employee Register of Interests and Gifts and Hospitality
	11 Standards Committee Work Programme



